
 

Preserving the Past    Planning for the Future 

     

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

W O R K I N G  S E S S I O N  M E M O R A N D U M  

 
Date: May 30, 2014 

To: Land Use Committee of the Board of Aldermen 

From: Candace Havens, Director of Planning and Development  
 Alexandra Ananth, Chief Planner for Current Planning 
 Daniel Sexton, Senior Planner  

Cc: Petitioner 
  

In response to questions raised at the Land Use Committee public hearing and/or staff technical 
reviews, the Planning Department is providing the following information for the upcoming public 
hearing/working session. This information is supplemental to the staff analysis previously provided at 
the public hearing/working session.   
 

PETITION #424-13           19-33 Needham Street 

A request to develop retaining walls greater than four feet in height and to locate two parking spaces 
in the front yard setback. 

 
The Land Use Committee held a public hearing on May 13, 2014.  
The public hearing was held open so that the petitioner could 
provide supplemental information.  In response to the items 
requested in staff’s technical review memo and concerns raised by 
the Committee at the public hearing, the petitioner submitted the 
following supplemental information: 
 

New/Updated Plans.  To clarify the question of the total square 
footage for the buildings on the site, the petitioner provided floor plans identifying the potential 
square footage allocations to each of the proposed uses.  Per the floor plans and conceptual site 
improvements plan, the total building square footage for the existing and proposed uses on the site 
appears to be approximately 66,289 square feet.  To further support the indicated total building 
square footage, the petitioner provided a copy of a correspondence from Jason Rosenberg Esq., 
counsel for Special Permit #141-91(2) petition.  

The petitioner also provided an updated conceptual site improvement plan accommodating many of 
the comments previously raised by staff of potentially hazardous interactions between cyclists, 
pedestrians, and vehicles on and from the site.  On the proposed plan, near the NUFG trailhead, the 
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petitioner has proposed informational signage, removable bollards, and fencing.  These measures 
should help to minimize potential conflicts between pedestrians and vehicles.  To better explain the 
parking scenario along Easy Street, the petitioner has demarcated the typical parking configuration 
on the opposite side of Easy Street from the subject property, which is owned by National Lumber.  
Per the Easy Street parking configuration, it appears ± 22 feet of the private right-of-way will be 
available to vehicle and pedestrian movements.   

The Planning Department is concerned that the proposed passageway width, which would need to 
accommodate the two-way travel of bicycles, pedestrians, passenger vehicles, and trucks, may not 
afford the safe maneuverability and separation of pedestrians and vehicles.  This concern is further 
reinforced by the City’s Transportation Division comments (ATTACHMENT A), which speak to the 
projection of vehicles parked in the substandard angled parking stalls into the passageway, and the 
inequitable approval of the Easy Street parking configuration.  The City’s Transportation Division also 
suggested that the diagonal parking spaces on Easy Street be converted to parallel stalls and that 
Easy Street be improved as part of this request to address the safety and visibility needs of the 
additional motorists, cyclists and pedestrians who will be using it.  The City’s staff does, however, 
recognize that the shape and steep topography of the site may constrain making certain 
improvements.  

Per the updated conceptual site improvement plan, the petitioner has proposed the installation of 
additional landscape plantings adjacent to the parking facility abutting the MBTA right-of-way to 
supplement the existing vegetation in this area.  These plantings, which staff has not received a 
planting detail plan for, should help to screen the activities of the site and discourage the unwanted 
trespass of vehicles on to the NUFG.  Per a site visit conducted by staff, numerous planters around 
the lower parking lot are sparsely planted and/or lack plantings completely.  The Planning 
Department encourages the petitioner to incorporate additional plants in these planters.   

Updated Parking Evaluation and Trip Generation Evaluation Report.  Comments from the City’s 
Transportation Division on the Updated Parking Evaluation and Trip Generation Evaluation report are 
pending.  Staff anticipates being able to verbally present the comments of the City’s Transportation 
Division at the working session.  

Transportation-Related Comments.  According to conversations with the City’s Transportation 
Division, the responses submitted by MDM Transportation Consultants, Inc regarding the 
transportation-related comments have been found to be satisfactory.   

Parking Analysis.  In a letter submitted by counsel for the petitioner (ATTACHMENT B), an update of the 
historic and proposed parking calculations for the subject property was provided.  The letter was not 
able to fully explain the different figures presented in the application materials and City 
memorandums for Special Permit #141-91(2).  It was, however, put forward in the letter that a 
parking waiver of 35 stalls was most likely authorized under Special Permit #141-91(2), per a copy of 
a correspondence from Jason Rosenberg Esq., counsel for Special Permit #141-91(2) petition.  The 
counsel for this petition also made an assertion that the parking requirement for the automotive 
retail use, granted under Special Permit #141-91(2), may have been set at 11 parking stalls.  
Furthermore, the petitioner’s counsel speculated that the off-site parking stalls shown on the site 
plan approved under Special Permit #141-91(2) were either treated as “(i) approval of the off-site 
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parking and the granting of waivers or (ii) recognition of the prior non-conformity of the use” of off-
site parking stalls without prior special permit approval.   

With this information in mind, counsel for the petitioner calculated the parking requirement for the 
uses on the site by using the formula A-B+C outlined in §30-19(c)(2).  Per this calculation, it appears 
the parking requirements for the uses on the subject site have not changed from 182 parking stalls, 
and that the site has a parking credit of 28 parking stalls.  Per the proposed restriping plan, which 
indicates 159 parking stalls on the site, the proposed number of parking stalls exceeds the number of 
required parking stalls per the formula above.  To provide flexibility in the re-tenanting of the 
property, the petitioner is requesting an additional waiver of 18 parking stalls, on top of the already 
granted waiver of 35 stalls, so that the aggregate parking demand cap for all the uses on the site 
could or would be capped at 200 parking stalls (182+18=200).    

Based on information available for Special Permit #141-91(2) and provided by the petitioner for the 
current petition, the Planning Department believes the petitioner’s assertion that the previously 
obtain waiver of 35 parking stalls is reasonable.  The Department is less comfortable with the position 
that the parking requirement for the automotive retail use was set at 11 stalls under Special Permit 
#141-91(2).  However, no evidence is available to refute this argument and the majority of vehicles 
for the retail automotive use are located inside the building.  Since the assumptions put forth by 
counsel for the petitioner regarding the formalization of the off-site parking stalls are open for 
interpretation, the Department supports the request to formalize the off-site parking stalls in the 
MBTA right-of-way and along Easy Street.  While the layout for the proposed parking facility appears 
operational, staff still has reservations that the full occupancy of the property with the proposed mix 
of uses may result in on- and off-site impacts.  

Recommendation.  Based on these submittals, the Planning Department recommends no action at 
this time for petition #424-13.  The Department is awaiting comments from the City’s Transportation 
Division on the Updated Parking Evaluation and Trip Generation Evaluation Report.  The petitioner is 
encouraged to consider staff’s comments and submit the planting detail plan.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
ATTACHMENT A:  Transportation Division Memorandum, dated 5/28/14 
ATTACHMENT B:  Letter from Alan Schlesinger, counsel for the petitioner, dated May 28, 2014  
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Memorandum 

To: Daniel Sexton  

Senior Planner 

CC: Bill Paille 

 Director of Transportation 

From: Zach Bosch 

 Transportation Engineer 

Date: 5/28/2014 

Re: 19-33 Needham Street Parking and Pavement Marking Plan 

Staff of the Transportation Division of the Department of Public Works reviewed both the Site Plan 

and the Parking Evaluation and Trip Generation Evaluation Memorandum of the proposed 19-33 

Needham Street project, and has the following comments: 

  
 The revised site plan appears to accommodate many of the comments previously specified by 

staff, especially in terms of the locations and number of accessible parking spaces, and the 

removal of the most deficient parking spaces.  This has created the best possible site plan, given 

the existing constraints. 

  
 However, staff remains concerned about the proposed parking and future travel conditions on Easy 

Street.  The site plan shows a 22 foot wide passageway, and must accommodate two-way traffic, 

large delivery vehicles, bicycles and pedestrians.  The diagonal parking spaces shown on Easy 

Street are substandard in width and length, and will push vehicles further out toward the middle of 

Easy Street.  Furthermore, as Easy Street is a private way, owned jointly by the lumber yard at 15 

Needham Street, and 19-33 Needham Street, it appears inequitable seek official approval of 

diagonal parking on one side of Easy Street (19-33 Needham) while requiring parallel parking 

spaces on the other (lumberyard side).  It is suggested that the diagonal parking spaces on Easy 

Street be converted to parallel spaces.  It is also suggested that Easy Street be improved as part of 

this Special Permit request, to address the safety and visibility needs of the additional motorists, 

cyclists and pedestrians who will be using it. 

  
 Staff comments of the Parking Evaluation and Trip Generation Evaluation are pending based on 

additional discussions of the methodology used. 
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